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January 10, 2018 

Brad Jacobson 
Kenny Construction Co. 
2215 Sanders Road 
Northbrook, IL 60062 
 
RE: Radiological Survey of Infrastructural Excavations 

Permit No.:  Digger 600368509 
Permit Address: 401-99 North Lake Shore Drive, Chicago, Illinois 

 AECOM Project No. 60558002 

Dear Mr. Jacobson: 

Pursuant to conditions required by the United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) and the 
City of Chicago Department of Public Health (CDPH), radiation surveying was required to be performed at 
the above referenced Site.  Specifically, screening for thorium was required whenever excavation 
activities would be conducted in areas that were not previously screened during the recent Chicago Park 
District (CPD) project at DuSable Park.  AECOM Technical Services, Inc. (AECOM) provided the required 
radiation surveillance on November 2 and 20 as well as December 4, 7, 11, and 13 for excavation related 
to the installation of structural components for the Lakefront Bike Trail within DuSable Park and in the 
ROW along the western property boundary of DuSable Park. 

Surveying was performed within the excavation and on the spoil removed (refer to annotated drawing).  
The activities included excavations of foundation pads and existing concrete obstructions. Kenny 
Construction excavated three separate foundation areas located in the northwest and southwest corners 
of the Site as well as an area directly south of the east entrance ramp. The foundation excavation directly 
south of the east entrance ramp included some removal of existing concrete obstruction. The three 
excavation areas were in various sizes ranging between 6 to 24-feet in length, 4 to 16-feet wide, and to a 
depth of 4-feet below ground surface (bgs).  The area directly south of the east entrance ramp was 
excavated beyond 4-feet bgs, however screening was not continued after the removal of the obstruction 
since the base was within native soil (sand). 

The USEPA removal action level for Chicago’s Streeterville area is 7.1 picocuries per gram (pCi/g) total 
radium (Ra-226 + Ra-228).  Gamma radiation count measurements for the project were recorded using 
Ludlum Model 2221 survey meters and a shielded 2 x 2 inch Nal probe (Model 44-10).  For the 
instruments used, the gamma count thresholds indicative of the 7.1 pCi/g removal action level were 6,367 
(S/N: 176944) and 7,374 cpm (S/N: 172039) counts per minute (cpm) shielded.   

Excavation activities for the Bike Trail project at DuSable Park were initiated in the northwest corner of 
Park near the East Ramp and Ogden Slip on November 2, 2017.  The area was located in the northwest 
corner of DuSable Park within the 40-foot setback that was not screened as part of the CPD DuSable 
Park project.  With one exception, the gamma readings by AECOM during the excavation work within the 
setback area were between 2,000 and 4,000 cpm shielded.  The instrument threshold equivalent to the 
USEPA removal action level was 7,374 cpm shielded.  At a depth of approximately 4.5 feet below the 
original surface (about 3 feet CCD) a maximum reading of approximately 18,000 cpm shielded was 
observed at a spot less than 6 X 6 inches at 1:15PM.   
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A hand shovel was used by AECOM to remove approximately 2 inches of fill from the 6 X 6 inch area to 
investigate whether the gamma readings were increasing with depth or expanded laterally (refer to the 
attached drawing).  However, after removal of the small volume of fill (less than 1/2 gallon) the in situ 
gamma readings dropped below the instrument threshold and were consistent with other readings 
observed in the excavation area (less than 3,500 cpm shielded).  Readings of the fill removed and placed 
in the 5-gallon pail were only slightly above the instrument threshold at approximately 8,000 cpm 
shielded.  Further screening within the area did not reveal any other gamma readings above the 
instrument threshold.  In discussions with the USEPA, it was agreed that this small spot would not require 
verification sampling.  The contaminated fill was added to one of the bulk storage bags for the CPD 
project, which were being shipped for disposal to US Ecology in Grand View, Idaho.   

The field gamma measurements within the remaining excavation areas, and for the spoil removed during 
the excavation process, did not exceed the instrument thresholds previously stated and ranged from a 
minimum of 1,300 cpm to a maximum of 4,400 cpm shielded. Based on field observations there was no 
further indication of the presence of radiologically-contaminated fill and/or an exceedance of the USEPA 
removal action level of 7.1 pCi/g total radium.  An annotated drawing and a table of the survey readings 
for each of the areas has been included in the attachments.   

As part of the monitoring requirements a copy this letter has been forwarded to: 

 Chicago Department of Public Health 
 Attention:  Mr. Terry Sheahan 
 333 South State Street, Room 200 
 Chicago, Illinois  60604 

Please contact us with any questions you have regarding this letter or the reported results. 

Regards, 
 

     
Andrew Kozak Steven C. Kornder, Ph.D. 
Geologist Senior Project Geochemist 
 
cc: Terry Sheahan, Chicago Department of Public Health 
 Verneta Simon, USEPA 

Attachments: Annotated Drawing and Results Table 
   



 
 
 

 

ANNOTATED DRAWING AND TABLE 
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Section Depth (inches)

1 0" ‐ 48"

2 0"

18"

36"

48"

3 0" ‐ 48"

48"

4 0" ‐ 36"

5** 0"

18"

36"

48"

Notes:

1,900 ‐ 2,600

shielded probe.

** Table doesn't include readings for the small hot spot, refer to text.

* counts per minute, all readings were recordings utilizing a

Radiological Gamma Survey Readings

CPM Shielded*

1,600 ‐ 4,100

1,300 ‐ 1,700

1,900 ‐ 4,000

2,100 ‐ 2,700

3,300 ‐ 3,600

3,100 ‐ 4,400

2,200 ‐ 3,900

2,100 ‐ 4,000

1,600 ‐ 2,400

2,700 ‐ 3,900

2,000 ‐ 3,900
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